
April 21, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
First Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 20-18 
with Nossaman, LLC for TIFIA Legal Services 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications to the First Amendment of NVTA 
Agreement No. 20-18 with Nossaman, LLC for additional legal advisory services for 
securing a Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan and 
private sector financing for the construction of the new Vine Transit Maintenance Facility 
for a total amount not to exceed $75,000. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Under delegated authority, the Executive Director executed Agreement 20-18 in 
September 2020 for legal assistance with Nossaman to secure a TIFIA loan through the 
Build America Bureau (BAB) to construct the Vine Maintenance Facility. The original 
scope of work was intended to assist NVTA with the application to the BAB and 
associated documents such as the Local Transportation Fund redirection agreement with 
the County of Napa and Metropolitan Transportation Commission, the Collateral Agent 
Services Agreement as well as responses to the BAB in the legalities of debt structure 
and servicing.   
   
The Amendment will provide NVTA with continued legal assistance from Nossaman 
developing the financing structure and eventually, successful closing on the BAB loan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?   Yes $30,000 for the additional scope of services not to exceed 
total contract amount of $75,000.  The fund source is Transportation Development Act 
and has been accounted for in the Bus Maintenance Facility budget. 
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NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: First Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
Agreement No. 20-18 with Nossaman, LLC for TIFIA Legal Services 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications to the First Amendment of NVTA 
Agreement No. 20-18 with Nossaman, LLC for additional legal advisory services for 
securing a Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan and 
private sector financing for the construction of the new Vine Transit Maintenance Facility 
for a total amount not to exceed $75,000. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

It was the original intent to fund the new Maintenance Facility with a combination of 
Transportation Development Act (TDA), Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Regional 
Measure 3 (RM3) and TIFIA financing.  Recent announcements that California Supreme 
Court has agreed to hear arguments in a lawsuit against Regional Measure 3, the $3 toll 
increase on the Bay Area’s State Owned Bridges passed by Bay Area voters in 2018. 
That has compelled staff to recommend to the NVTA board to replace RM3 funds with a 
private sector loan to satisfy the Build America Bureau’s (BAB) requirements to have a 
complete funding package prior to the close of the TIFIA loan. 

To address the funding gap, staff expanded KNN’s scope of services to provide the 
agency with assistance to secure private bank loan.  The work included support during 
the credit review process, help in negotiating a term sheet, and assistance with 
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resubmitting a new indicative debt rating request letter from Moody’s Investment 
Services.  All of these services required legal review and were not in the original scope 
with Nossaman. The additional services helped accelerate the TIFIA loan process 
mitigating further delays. 
 
At the time, Nossaman’s budget was adequate without the need for the adjustment.   Staff 
is now shifting its focus on the legal due diligence portion with the recent changes in the 
financial structure.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?   Yes. $30,000 for the additional scope of services for a not to 
exceed amount of $75,000.  The fund source is Transportation Development Act and 
has been accounted for in the Bus Maintenance Facility budget. 
  
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The agency could forgo the use of industry experts to negotiate and secure a secondary 
loan.  However, staff does not have the technical knowledge nor expertise to pursue the 
type of financing arrangement that will result in a loan agreement.  Seeking competitive 
grant funds could delay the project indefinitely and halt efforts to obtain a TIFIA loan, and 
delaying the project and incurring potential construction escalation of $500,000 to $1 
million annually 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1:  Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability.   
 
Constructing the facility is needed to ensure fueling facilities are ready for electric buses 
currently on order and to ensure public transit services are provided in a safe and effective 
way. 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   
 
Support to secure additional financing from a private bank will allow NVTA to continue the 
financing process with the BAB and accelerate securing a TIFIA loan, advertise for the 
construction of the maintenance facility and start construction by the fall of 2021. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Draft First Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 20-18 
(2) Agreement 20-18 with Nossaman LLC. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.3 

APRIL 21, 2021 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (“NVTA”) 
AGREEMENT NO. 20-18 

 
 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“AMENDMENT”) TO NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY AGREEMENT NO. 20-18 is made and entered into as of this ____ day of 
__________________, 2021 between the NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY (“NVTA”), and NOSSAMAN LLP (“CONTRACTOR”), whose mailing address 
is 777 South Figuerora Street, 34th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017.  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, in September 2020 NVTA contracted for specialized finance counsel 
services from the CONTRACTOR to assist in securing a Transportation Infrastructure 
Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan under the Rural Projects Initiative Program (RPI) 
offered through the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Build America Bureau 
(BAB) for the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility Project pursuant to the Agreement No. 
20-18 (“Agreement”); and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to amend the Agreement for continued counsel services 
as set forth in EXHIBIT A of the Agreement to further assist in securing the TIFIA loan for 
the Transit Maintenance Facility project; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR can provide the continued counsel services at a cost to 

NVTA in the amount not to exceed $30,000. 
 

TERMS 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the NVTA and CONTRACTOR agree to amend the Agreement 
as follows: 

  
1. Section 3, Compensation of the Agreement, the maximum payment amount, together 

with the amendment, shall be a total of $75,000 for professional services and 
expenses; provided, however, that such amounts shall not be construed as 
guaranteed sums, and compensation shall be based upon services actually 
rendered. 

 
2. Except as set forth above, the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain 

in full force and effect as previously approved. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment was executed by the parties hereto 
as of the date first above written. 

“NVTA” "CONTRACTOR" 
Nossaman LLP 

By_______________________________ By______________________________ 
    KATE MILLER    BARNEY A. ALLISON   
    Executive Director  Attorney at Law, Partner 

ATTEST: 

By_______________________________ 
   LAURA SANDERLIN 
   NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By___________________________ 
   DEEANNE GILLICK    
   Sloan Sakai Yeung & Wong 

 NVTA General Counsel 
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